
September 9, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 2 

 
 

City of Lake Geneva, 626 Geneva St, Lake Geneva, WI 53147- 262.248.3673- www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 6:00 P.M. 

LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 

 
Members: 

Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Mayor Hartz calls the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Alderperson Dunn 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 

 
a. 2019 National Assisted Living Week Proclamation 
b. Presentation of Avian Committee Alliant Energy Bird Watching Kits 

 
5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 
6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
 

7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
 

8. Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of August 26, 2019, as prepared and distributed 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on September 3, 2019 
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request 
requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

 
a. 2019-2021 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
b. Approval of a Riviera Ballroom Lease Agreement Application filed by VISIT Lake Geneva to be used 

January 27, 2020 through February 2, 2020 for the event of Winterfest and a Street Banner Permit 
Application filed by VISIT Lake Geneva to be displayed January 1, 2020 through February 2, 2020 (Fees for 
both applications to equal $410) 

 
c. Event Permit Application filed by Lakeland Community Church for the event of Worship at the Park to be 

held on July 5, 2020 at 7:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. at Flat Iron Park 
 

 



September 9, 2019City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 2 

d. Approval of waiver of fees for a Street Banner Permit Application filed by Lake Geneva Public Library to be 
displayed July 24, 2020 through August 9, 2020 

 
e. Application for Alcohol License Premises Extension filed by Wal-Mart Stores East, LP d/b/a Wal-Mart #910, 

201 S Edwards Blvd, Lake Geneva; to allow for outdoor point of alcohol sale for online grocery pickup 
services 

 
f. Original Application for a Class “A” Intoxicating Liquor License Application and “Class A” Fermented Malt 

Beverage License Application filed by 1111 N Edwards Blvd, LLC d/b/a Fairfield Inn & Suites, Michelle 
Adkins, Agent, located at 1111 N Edwards Blvd, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

 
10. First Reading of Ordinance 19-14 amending sections 74-187(2)(b), Operation on streets restricted, and 74-188(b), 

Compliance with traffic laws; license required, of Article V, Neighborhood Electric Vehicles, of Chapter 74, Traffic 
and Vehicles, of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code; relating to licensing and areas of operation 
 

11. Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of September 3, 2019- Ald Howell 
 
a. Discussion/Action regarding donation of City of Lake Geneva Fire Department Ambulance to the City of 

Delavan 
 

b. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R63 authorizing the carryover of 2018 Equipment Replacement 
Funds to the 2019 Equipment Replacement Fund Budget and authorizing additional 2019 purchases from the 
Equipment Replacement Fund 

 
c. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R64 adopting a budget amendment authorizing the allocation of 

the Department of Public Works health insurance premiums to specific departments 
 
d. Discussion/Action regarding City of Lake Geneva Policy Regarding Issuance of Regular and Reserve 

Intoxicating Liquor Licenses 
 
e. Discussion/Action regarding City Staff Appreciation Party 
 
f. Discussion/Acceptance of September 3, 2019 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment 

Approval Report 
 
g. Discussion/Action regarding Vandewalle Proposal for Services in regards to Hillmoor Property Concept Plan 

(Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee motion to approve failed 2-3, with Howell, Hedlund, and Halverson voting no; 
Motion by Motion Howell to refer to Council without recommendation, second by Skates. Motion carried 5-0.) 

 
12. Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of deliberating or negotiating 

the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified business whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session regarding: Police Union Contract Negotiations  

 
13. Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items 

discussed in closed session 
 

14. Adjournment 
 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 
Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

 



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 

Proclamation 
 

Whereas, the number of elderly and disabled Americans is dramatically increasing; 
 
Whereas, assisted living is a long-term care service that fosters choice, dignity, independence 
and autonomy in our elderly nationwide; 
 
Whereas, the National Center for Assisted Living proudly created National Assisted Living 
Week®; 
 
Whereas, the theme of National Assisted Living Week 2019 is “A Spark of Creativity”.  The 
theme aims to inspire residents and staff to tap into their creative side, whether through the arts 
or beyond.  Creativity can improve cognitive and sensory-motor function, fosters self-esteem, and 
enhances social skills.  
 

Now, Therefore, I, Mayor Thomas Hartz, proclaim the week of September 8-14, 2019, as  

National Assisted Living Week® 
 

in the City of Lake Geneva, State of Wisconsin. I urge all citizens to visit friends, and loved ones 
who reside at these facilities and to learn more about assisted living services and how they benefit 
our communities. 
 
In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the official seal of the City 
of Lake Geneva, Walworth County, State of Wisconsin, this 9th day of September, 2019. 

 
 

 
________________________ 
Tom Hartz, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



August 26, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 4 

 
 

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA REGULAR COMMON COUNCIL MINUTES 
MONDAY, AUGUST 26, 2019 6:00 P.M. 
LAKE GENEVA CITY HALL; COUNCIL CHAMBERS (MAIN LEVEL) 

 
Members: Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, John Halverson, Council Vice President, Cindy Flower,  
Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Ken Howell, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 
 
Mayor Hartz called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Alderperson Skates led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
Roll Call 
Present: Proksa, Skates, Dunn, Flower, Straube, Halverson, Hedlund, and Howell 
Absent: None 

 
Awards, Presentations, Proclamations, and Announcements 
 
Motion by Heldund to suspend the rules and move the presentation later on the agenda, second by Skates. Motion carried 
4-0. 
 
Presentation of 2018 City of Lake Geneva Audit and Management Letter 
This item is to be presented later in the meeting. 
 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 
None 
 
Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes 
Terry O’Neil; 834 George St; Spoke in regards to the delay of the City receiving the 2018 Audit.  
 
Charlene Klein; 817 Wisconsin St; Spoke in favor of the Conditional Use Permit for 882 Geneva St and the preservation 
of that building. 
 
Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
Clerk Kropf noted that there wasn’t correspondence to acknowledge. 

 
Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of August 12, 2019, as prepared and distributed 
Motion by Proksa to approve the minutes of the August 12, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting, second by Skates. No 
discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA– Recommended by Finance, Licensing and Regulation on August 20, 2019 
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires 
no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 
 
-2019-2021 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
-Temporary Class “B” / “Class B” Retailer’s License Application filed by VISIT Lake Geneva for the event of the 
Winterfest Showcase to be held on January 30, 2020 at the Riviera Ballroom, 812 Wrigley Dr, Lake Geneva, WI 

 
-Temporary Operator License Application filed by Shawni Mutter to be used at the Winterfest Showcase to be held 
January 30, 2020 at the Riviera Ballroom, 812 Wrigley Dr, Lake Geneva, WI 

 

 



August 26, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 4 

-Event Permit Application filed by VISIT Lake Geneva for the event of the 44th Electric Christmas Parade to be held 
December 7, 2019 from 3:00 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. on Broad Street and Main Street of Downtown  

 
-Event Permit Application filed by Dakota, INC for the event of Fat Tire Ride to be held September 14, 2019 in the 
parking lot behind Champ’s Bar & Grill 

 
-Event Permit Application & Fireworks Display Application filed by Shannon Previte for the event of Badger High 
School Homecoming Fireworks Display to be held October 11, 2019 at Badger High School from 6:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 
-Event Permit Application filed by Carlie Blackman for the event of Semper Running Half Marathon to be held July 11, 
2020 located at South Lake Shore Drive ending at Seminary Park from 5:00 a.m. to Noon (Approval of permit with conditions 
identified by the Fire Department) 

 
-Temporary Class “B” / “Class B” Retailer’s License Application filed by Lot of Love, Inc for the event of Falz Fest to be 
used on September 20, 2019 at 965 Wells St, Lake Geneva, WI   
 
Motion by Howell to approve the consent agenda, second by Heldund. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Second Reading of Ordinance 19-13 an ordinance amending Chapter II, Administration, Article V, Boards and 
Commissions, Division Six, Plan Commission, Section 2-313, Composition, of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code; 
eliminating the Building and Zoning Administrator as a voting member of the Plan Commission 
Mayor Hartz offered ordinance 19-13 as a first reading. 
 
Motion by Howell to approve Ordinance 19-13, second by Proksa. Howell noted that most communities do not have the 
Zoning Administrator serve on the Plan Commission and they he requested that he be removed. Mayor Hartz noted that he 
would offer some grammatical changes and the new language would read: “The membership shall include the Mayor, the 
President of the Board of Park Commissioners, one Alderman, and four residents.” 
 
Motion by Skates to amend the motion to accept the language changes offered by the Mayor, second by Hedlund.  
Dunn asked why there was only one alderman on the Council and questioned what happens if that alderman wasn’t there. 
Skates noted that the Mayor is in attendance along with City staff. If for some reason the alderman appointed to the Plan 
Commission couldn’t attend a meeting there would be others present to present information to the Council.  
 
Motion to amend was read and the motion carried 8-0. 
 
Original motion as amended, carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R62 authorizing the receipt of the 2018 City of Lake Geneva Annual 
Financial Report and Management Letter 
Motion by Hedlund to suspend the rules to move this later on the agenda, second by Skates. No discussion. Motion carried 
8-0. 
 
Recommendation of the Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee of August 20, 2019- Ald Howell 

 
Discussion/Action regarding donation of City of Lake Geneva Fire Department Ambulance to the City of Delavan 
Motion by Howell to approve, second by Halverson. Mayor Hartz noted that it would be proper to have a letter from the 
Fire Department or the Police & Fire Commission explaining the current value of the ambulance before the Council votes 
to donate it. 
 
Motion by Halverson to continue to the next meeting, second by Flower. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding setting a date and time for Annual City of Lake Geneva Trick or Treating for 2019 (The 2018 
date and time was October 31, 2018 from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m.) 
Motion by Howell to hold the Trick or Treating on Sunday, October 27, 2019 prior to Halloween from Noon to 4:00 p.m., 
second by Hedlund. Dunn noted that the City of Cedarburg holds holiday events on both the Sunday before Halloween 
and on the day itself; this is something that the City could look into for the future. 



August 26, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 4 

Proksa noted that she is favor of having the Trick or Treating on the Sunday but maybe offered that there be some later 
hours for the older children. Motion carried 6-2, with Straube and Skates voting no. 

 
Discussion/Action regarding City of Lake Geneva Garbage and Recycling RFP and of possible contract extension with 
John’s Disposal 
Motion by Howell to approve a five-year contract extension with John’s Disposal, second by Hedlund. Mayor Hartz noted 
that the City Attorney had not reviewed this extension and asked that this item be continued. 
 
Motion by Heldund to continue this item, second by Halverson. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Acceptance of August 20, 2019 Finance, Licensing, and Regulation Committee Payment Approval Report  
Motion by Howell to accept, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Recommendation of the Planning Commission of August 19, 2019- Ald Skates 

 
Discussion/Action regarding an application submitted by Daniel & Andrea Pether for Extraterritorial Zoning (ETZ) land 
division creating a new CSM located at N2957 Marshall Ln. Lake Geneva, located in the Town of Geneva, creating a lot 
line adjustment Tax Key No. JA396100002 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Proksa. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R59 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 
Thomas & Kathy George, 3380 S. Lake Shore Dr. Delavan 53115, to allow Outdoor Commercial Entertainment land use 
for the business located at 882 Geneva Street, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district, Tax Key Nos. 
ZOP00252 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Straube. Flower applauded the Georges for their work and questioned if 10 p.m. 
was too late for outside commercial entertainment. Mayor noted that they will not have music and that the outdoor area 
will be used for patrons to have coffee and dessert. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R60 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 
Jonathan Grosso, 4209 W. Stonefield Rd. Mequon, WI 53902, to allow for the installation of a 95’ pier located at 950 
Mariane Terrace, located in the Estate Residential -1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key Nos. ZSY00015 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Hedlund. Skates noted that there was already DNR approval for this request. 
Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R61 authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) filed by 
CDS Investments LLC, 1840 International Parkway, Woodridge, IL. 60517, to allow for the raze and rebuild a new single 
family home located at 1550 Lake Shore Dr. located within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. 
ZLM00048 
Motion by Skates to approve, second by Halverson. Mayor Hartz noted that the original application was to do a 
renovation, but found that a lot of the house is concrete. This finding would be cost prohibitive so the easier solution 
would be to raze the building itself. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Mayoral Appointment of Kelley Happ to the Avian Committee for a term to expire May 1, 2021 
Motion by Proksa to approve, second by Skates. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Motion by Hedlund to suspend the rules to allow Mr. Maccoux to address the Council, second by Halverson. 
 
Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 19-R62 authorizing the receipt of the 2018 City of Lake Geneva Annual 
Financial Report and Management Letter 
Dave Maccoux from Clifton Larson Allen LLP addressed the Council regarding the City’s 2018 Audit and Management 
Letter. Mr. Maccoux noted that the delay in the City receiving the completed audit was due to working with the City 
actuary. Maccoux noted that the City and the Utility have very little debt in comparison to the assets. He indicated that 
this shows the City to be very healthy. Halverson questioned why the delay in receiving this report and that a citizen had 
noted that there were numerical values placed on audits for how healthy or unhealthy they are and if that was correct. Mr. 
Maccoux reiterated that the delay was due to the standard changes and that they were still finalizing with the actuary. 
Maccoux further noted that there isn’t a “numeric value” given to an audit based on the outcome that he is aware of. 



August 26, 2019City Council Minutes   Page 4 of 4 

 
He then proceeded to review the management letter. He added that the City did do a good job on segregating the duties 
between the City and Utility Commission however since those changes were made mid-year and not the whole year, they 
still needed to identify that segregation of duties as an area to work on. 
 
Motion by Hedlund to approve Resolution 19-R62, second by Flower. Hedlund thanked Finance Director Hall for doing 
an exceptional job. Motion  carried 8-0. 

 
Adjournment 
Motion by Skates to adjourn, second by Proksa. Motion carried 8-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:07 p.m. 
 



 
Provisional License: 
Brianna Cole 
Eileen Nowak 
 
Original License: 
Brianna Cole 
Eileen Nowak 
 
Renewal Operator: 
 
 













Winterfest
2016

Fees Charged
2017

Fees Charged
2018

Potential Fees
2018

Fees Charged
2019 Fees 
Charged

Park Reservation Permit
Application Fee 25.00$                  25.00$                  25.00$                     25.00$                       n/a
Security Deposit -$                      -$                      -$                         -$                           
Park Reservation Fee 105.00$                105.00$                735.00$                  -$                           
Brunk Pavilion Rental -$                      -$                      500.00$                  -$                           

Street Use
Application Fee 25.00$                  25.00$                  25.00$                     25.00$                       n/a
Permit Fee - Events lasting 2 days or less 40.00$                  40.00$                  40.00$                     -$                           
Barricades 45.00$                  45.00$                  45.00$                     -$                           
Barricade Security Deposit -$                      -$                      -$                         -$                           

Beach Reservation Permit
Application Fee 52.00$                  25.00$                  25.00$                     25.00$                       n/a
Security Deposit -$                      -$                      -$                         -$                           
Beach Reservation Fee 105.00$                105.00$                210.00$                  105.00$                     

Riviera Ballroom Usage
Security Deposit -$                      -$                      -$                         -$                           
Riviera Usage -$                      -$                      2,800.00$               0.00

Temporary Class B Retailer's License
Fee - per State Statute 10.00$                     10.00$                       

Street Banner Display Permit
Street Banner Display Permit -$                      -$                      960.00$                  220.00$                     

TOTAL $397.00 $370.00  $               5,375.00  $                    410.00 





















t' i lt t i.' b rJ.' > i \.{fi tt.,:2";'t'r;'tiirL" 

^cITyoFIAKE GENE,A tlffi
I tlr t.i'ttt.itt, ,Vl j.jr 47
1:*:) 2.it-)b73
t.t.,.rLi!rti:!L*r*,.*t;.t...,,,1 CITY OF IAKE GENEV;

ALCOHOT LICENSE PREMISES EXTENSION
APPLICATIOI{

PLEASE FILL IN ALt BIAN'( 5 COMPLETELY, AS INCAANPLETE APPLICAflONS WILL BE

App licat i ott Clrcckt i st:

fr

0

B

a

Applicant must currently hold a valicl alcohol license

Applicant obtained a Temporary Use Permit or Conditional Use permit from the
Building and Zoning DePartment fcr special events and permanent outdoor areas)

Scaled diagran which accurately depicts the location of the premises extension. Such
drawing shall include the access poinis, fencing (if applicable) ancl the loc-ation of rvhere
alcohol rvill be stored and/or servecl.

Application Fee of 525.00 to amend an already approved licensed premises. This fee is
chargetl to defray the cost o[ review and re-issuance of the license. This fee ttoes NOT
apply to prer[ises extensions requesterl at the time of annual renewal ol the license.

APPL1CANT INFOIIMATTON

i\pplicarrt Name: Wal-Mart Sto,res East, LP

llstahlisSrne't Name; Walmart #91 0

;\rlclregs: 201 S. Edwards Boulevard, Lake Geneva, Wl S3147

REIECTED.

I'lc*st: Check:

D Nr.rlusl lrrr
raft

X Rr:.lu.,r,l i.rr
outt{rlrrr anttt

prunlises t'xterrsion (o sidewalk

Premises r.xlensiqrn to ptrmanr.trt

Requesl. frrr [emForary (sIrtN:iirl ever.rIJ preutix,s
extertsion
Othcr request lbr prentists t:xtensiou

stalls andlor canopy locations in parking lot specifically designated for online grocery pickup. complete premlsesdescriplion to read as follows: 1 1g9*, i story. approx. 1s8,24g sq. tt. rncludrrig stalL'and/or canopy tocations inparking lol specirtcally designated for online slrocery pickup- Producl is iocateo in coolers and on shetves and endcaps in grocery department and displayed in seasonal aisies and main aiste in grocery. overstock of beer islocated on pallets in receiving area; ovbrstock of alcohol is localed in locted room in receivrng area (managers andreceiving clerk are only employees wilh access). Recordslreccipts sre located in invoice otfice tnback room.

Alcohol License No.:_,LCombo 16 phone: lV6'Zl. 248-2266

Desr-ribe area of premises extension:

Extensiott of Prenixs Applicntion pagt I r{ 2 5n013

J

0



Evcnt Title: N/A

-*D,ttr, arrd Tinrt, ol' Evenl:

Hove vott olrtaintd a Tcmporary Use Perrrtit (or Conclitionat Use Permit) frorn lhe Builrling and Z6rringDepaytnl'1117 yes No

Evunt Dcseription;

Datc Filcrl wiih Cterk
Total Amr.runt;

Da[t: Fr.rnvarded lo Police Chbf:
Police Chief Sig,nature:

Drrtc Forwtrrtk cl to Zoning
Zoning Administrator Sign

Date of FLR/Council Approval:

Copies Provided to:

fi'1T n-,..o

non-siclewalk cafri applica tions)
'\ Deniad

Politr: Chief

Extensian of Preuiscs Aytplication pagt: 2 t{ 2 5fr.013

SICNATURE OF APPLICA



Pickup

910 LakeGeneva,WI

Solution

Canopy
Stall Quantity

10

Check-In

UpdateExisting (Rear)

Pickup
Door

Pickup
Door



 Compliance & Ethics 
Online Grocery Pickup Procedure Guide 

 

 
 
 

*red text indicates a control related to alcohol 

Placing Order 
 
• Customers visit grocery.walmart.com and can view an assortment of products – determined 

by their store 
o Listed products are initially based on the Customer’s location and updated when the 

Customer selects their preferred store 
 
• Prior to checking out, the Customer must login (or create) their account, select a desired 

pickup store, and designate a time slot for picking up their order 
 

• Once the customer has built their basket and presses checkout, Customer completes the 
order by supplying Walmart with payment information 

 
• Walmart authorizes and holds the card information, but funds are not transferred from the 

card 
 

                         
 

• Where allowed by state and local law, customers can include alcoholic beverage product in 
their online grocery order through walmart.com/grocery. 

 
• All alcoholic beverage product item pages are flagged with a notification explaining the 

restrictions around purchasing this product (pictured below). 
 

 
 
• If the customer checks out with an alcoholic beverage product in their basket, an 

acknowledgement box must be checked by the customer (pictured below) prior to placing 
the order 

 

 

  



 Compliance & Ethics 
Online Grocery Pickup Procedure Guide 

 

 
 
 

*red text indicates a control related to alcohol 

Picking / Staging 
 
• On the day a customer is scheduled to pick up an order, a Walmart associate – known as a 

“Personal Shopper” – will “shop” for the customer’s order in the store 
 
• All shopping is completed on the pickup day to ensure the Customer receives the freshest 

products 
 

• If a product is not available in-store, it is either substituted or removed from the customer’s 
order 

o Alcohol beverage products are never substituted – if they are not available in-store, 
they are removed from the customer’s order and the customer is not charged 

 
 

 
 
• Alcohol beverage products are assigned to a “Restricted” 

commodity group to ensure only Personal Shoppers who 
have received appropriate training and are of a legal age – 
per the governing jurisdiction – will be allowed to pick these 
products 

o In Wisconsin, Personal Shoppers must hold an 
operator/bartender license issued by their local 
municipality  

 
• The picking carts – used by our Personal Shoppers “shop” 

for Customers – are equipped with a roll of stickers labeled 
with the word “alcohol” 

o Orders containing alcohol beverage products are 
bagged and labeled with an alcohol sticker 
(pictured right) 

o This sticker enables our Personal Shoppers to 
clearly identify items that are subject to additional 
regulatory restrictions  

 
• All picked orders are kept in a secure backroom staging 

area, not open to the public, and only where Walmart 
employees are permitted to enter  



 Compliance & Ethics 
Online Grocery Pickup Procedure Guide 

 

 
 
 

*red text indicates a control related to alcohol 

Customer Pickup: Order Review 
 
• Online Grocery Pickup is currently offered between 8am – 8pm (to better serve our 

customers, select locations offer additional time slots), 7 days a week (except holidays or 
other store closures) 
 

• When the customer arrives, they “check-in” via the store’s offered 
methods (phone, app-based, kiosk, options vary by location) 

 
• The Personal Shopper assigned to dispense the order uses the 

handheld device to identify the order number and pull the 
appropriate totes from the staging areas 

 
• Prior to putting the customer’s order in their vehicle, the Personal 

Shopper uses their handheld device to review the order with the 
customer – reviewing substituted items, fragile items, out of stock 
items, and completing age verification (as needed, based on products 
in the order) 

 
• This review allows the Customer to ensure they are getting what they 

want and provides the Customer an opportunity to return or reject any item(s) 
 
• Only Personal Shoppers meeting the age requirements within the governing jurisdiction are 

allowed to handle and/or dispense orders with alcohol beverage products 
 
• If a Customer’s order includes alcohol beverage product, the personal shopper is prompted 

by their handheld device that there are restricted items in their order 
 
• If alcohol is not allowed to be sold at the time of dispense, the associate 

is notified (via their handheld device) that sale of the product is currently 
restricted, the items are automatically removed from the customer’s 
digital basket (the customer will not be charged), and the personal 
shopper will remove the physical product from the order (pictured right) 

 
• The personal shopper will request valid identification – as described in 

our alcohol disclosure – and enter the customer’s date of birth from the 
provided identification into their handheld device (pictured below)  

 



 Compliance & Ethics 
Online Grocery Pickup Procedure Guide 

 

 
 
 

*red text indicates a control related to alcohol 

• After age verification: 
 

o If the customer is confirmed over 21, the customer can sign for the 
order, and the personal shopper can place the final order into the 
customer’s vehicle 
 

o If the customer is under 21 and/or cannot provide a valid ID, the 
alcohol beverage products are removed from the customer’s order 
and the customer is not charged for these products. 
(pictured right) 

 
 
 
Customer Pickup: Dispensing 
 
• Once the customer and personal shopper have: 

o Reviewed any substituted items, fragile items, and out of stock items 
o Removed any rejected products that the customer no longer wants 
o Verified the customer’s age and identification if the order contained any age 

restricted items (and if necessary, removed age restricted items) 
 

• The customer signs for the order, the customer’s account is charged with the final order 
amount (after removing the cost of any products removed from the customer’s order) 
 

• The personal shopper places the all approved products into the customer’s vehicle, and the 
transaction is considered complete 

 

 



Original Alcohol Beverage
Subrnft to municipal clerk.

For the license period beginning
ending

Retail License,{ppl ication

J uml 0D q)

Wu hemeuq

No, . (if required by ordinance)

if, urit*t Liabitity company

TYPE

ffi Class A beer

5 Cr.tr e beei
n C6; C;in"**-"
S Ci,-. a 11.il'
l--l Ctass A liquor (cider

[j Ctass B liquor

[J.[e ervg cf 199 B- liguor
3 ctags e iwin; Jnrvt winery

Publication fee

NuiltDoa

D5+gozu

20

20

' EEg

Ir to0-,p,0

,$

,ffi;it
is N/A

le' ..-
i$

:$

__ _ ,,$, ,

T0 THE G0VERNING BODY of the:

County of

[J Town of 1

-l vittage ot I
frciVot t
Aldermanic Dist.

!j PertnershipL The named fl lndividual

f-l Corporation i Nonprolit 0rganization

hereby makes application for the alcohol beverage license(s) checked above.

$

Narne {rnorvrtlr:iil:parlners givs last narire irrsi. rlrdLil* corcorali0nsilim,ted lrability comoanres give :egrslered namel: )
JJll ,U Wrh/b ?lnJ, (LL

An "Auxiliary Questionnaire,o Form AT-l03,rmust be completed and attached to this application by each lndividual applicant, by each member of a
paftnership, and by each officeq director and agent ol a corporation or nonprofit organization, and by each memberlmanager and agent of a limited
liability company. List the name, title, and place of residence of each person.

Titls llamo tlo$t, Firet. M.l.) Home Addrass Post office & Zio Code
presidenuMembe, *1.. t?78yn&1 lrAnf*i, JffiJtL         

Secretary/Member ______

Treasurer/Member

Aseni ) rlt iC#eIk &J f rnS
Jrre,::tn .il :,i..tjrj,.i

Br. ir.r r Ph.r. N, #-T}r#.;jj1#-::9'et' -.
Postofficeazipc;;;-> 

* 
iWels"e};" 5'b{ 7

6.

7.

8.

{v*
I Yes

Ij Yes

[-] ves

I Yes

[] tro

&L tlo
igl No

fll tto

[/ r.lo

9.

[pnone (008) 266.27761.

14. Does the applicant undersland thatihey must purchase alcohol beveragos cnly {rom Wisr:orrsrn whojesatcrs Drcwencs and brtwpuh*'}

this busifless according to iaw afld that llte rights arid responsibilrties eonfefeij !iy rhe license(s], not be assigned l0 anolhel. {lndividual applicanis, cr ene memb{,r ci
a parlngrship aipli{ant mii$t $i$fi; ofle corporsie otlrcer one membarlmanager of irrnited L

during in$pection will ire deemed a reiusal to permit irrspeclicn. Such rsfi;sal i; a misderneanor grgunds

-f r,rs r l+c

*f r** : lic

u $fff . crJ

3. Trade l,ra*u ) FA.ri 1_.,g fullpytrt tt tru.,1es
4. A<itiress or preniises > Ytl / il EclUr,t"&fii,tJ
5. ls individual. panners of agent of corporationllimiled liability conrpany $uiliect i0 ccrnpletioir oi ihe responsible beverage server

trainrng 60ufse for'lhis license period?

ls the applicant an employe or agent 0t, or acting on behalt of anyone except the named applicant?

iloes any olher alcohol beverage relail licensee or wholesale permitlee have any inlerest in 0r control o{ ihis business?
(a) Corporatellinritedliahilitycomp.nyapplicantsonly: lnserlsiata -d3*--.-*-.- and aav Qlid].|[*- of regislraiicn
(n) ls apnlicani corporalion/limlted liahility company a subsldiary 0f anv olher corporation 0r limited liabllily company?. . . . , .

(c) Does the corpoiaiion, or any oflicer, director, stockholder or agent 0r limited liability conrpany, 0r any member/manager 0r

agent hcld any inlerest in a(y othor alcohol boverage license or permit in Wisconsin? . . . . .

$aTE: Alt appiicants oxplain fully an reyerse srile of this lorm every YES ansser,rr se{lrbns 5, 6', 7 ond I abave.)

Prernises description: Describe building or buildings where alcohol beverages ara lo he sokl and slored. Ihe apulicant mrist inr:lude

13. Dcts tlie appiicanl ,'nderstand they must holrj a lliscansin Seller's Persiit? .:.i /',iut"/
4.rfi ,

pgl.i, i
;trlrr pr.,/

>lt{'rt '
@{tt*>

i 
Odr6 li&ns6 issusd

I

Liccllse rumtior rgsusd

')Ys!: r,?,:;in :*Frrlmrfil fl l":rtf , I

TO BE COMPLETEB BY CLERK
repofad lc @uircil / bosrd Daic piov'$iqlal t.!'!Jft*ilrf il i. i{..-ii

Any lack of access ts any portiofl oi a l,cefised Fr€rnrses



i1

lil

8

;IH

"'1'r
""r, i

n
$

nf;
i ir::.
;65
EEb
iEE

,/

.i
!i lr
,t:

2 17':: ,;
i;Iij
:, ;: ti :.;

'1'::i
Jai:;

i

\:

rfl il
EOLF-t(no{-

,f)
a.:r/
irl
lLl

-i

:

ii r,)
z. z, l))<;iur.-..;
lrrii
"-/1\
PIlY
=:l.rrJ) (f)

E:J s-, ,'

u* IEli
fr!l i!1,:!
rtii; vll -

E$iiil ,

d#:lacl,;E;; Eit i,

s{ i$li,clr g

li,,
ilil
t:r

lritir
i::
riil;i
!ii

t::

3i:ilI
3j
i1 Ij

3!

.:{
,t!
ii t!

!r:$
*ct
U+k
J6C

I

{r;
ui,

8

I

t')
lii

/L,w'
lll

l.l

h

q

1i

I
I
:2

,,.!
:!

F<
t.'

6

,B

uip
H:n
\e?
rriE
iBBS



&..,:i
o,,, i::,
.e: 1i.ct, i:i.
E 1 :ii

fril:11

z): .-. I
-_ ill nj F

dZ"' i f,'

s

t

t:

::

_i:

.rl

{

i:
!:

!t,

+j

a,"e

ft-1. ,,,1i rrlhilr ilt ,i

rl, -fffrfi 
i,,i'; i6r ^fllj{fl, i.r,,

; si I 
ilxmjrffi1lqlffi]

ilrliiil

,k" ,,,1ffi1 u

,,,' ffi:*,
ru 

-r **ffi[]l;ffiru

op, 
ul'll'll'l',ll{l1l#lI

Mffil, 
ru,]l

ffiffiffi
, 
' :1 lr ' -,ilifif'' 

ili

I i 'Wm i,i,t' ,i ',n 
iffi' ,fl,

ts-t---------- /

,l,l (:-
:'l

il
r,i

lil
,u

(,1

1.

0

7
r
!il

ii:

6li)

,ti;
i ; l!
tiiii
, Llt. i :li

! I 1;i
r ;r iil
! ii lli

I
!
I
:l

?

i1
;i!l
!!

. a- ii
iii: !i
iil! !i

3

j
I

l
t

t r\

i t(

i |t'
I it.'

i, ii)

ir ii,
ilii:: iri
:i :''

,Y,l
-._ _ --l_ __,

ii,,rl:'
:ai: :

," 
i

3L .r;EEll i

,',,!,[H.[#-{ i

:.,:lli''nrif 
,:+;:jl n. r .rll

Tm.{gltll-- |

ffiffi| l
ffiFhTffi I

ihi,iitl{"1' B

lHxufisll '
nln.f".l1lI i r

I1fifi,l.fi |

t1!tiFl{
il,#_ld'j] i I

{rHtHl, -..-ErarEI | [I

i,
#

ffi
:

rirf--
Iit,li 8l

{9t
:,1.
*fl:I illl+

I iil,
:: :i lJ

;i

-rr-n -l
.iit
. :i I

lit
:il,.itt

lliit
lliilil ii t

lliir
11,""'iii
tl/=ir l



i:
ii
j

{
:l
:l

;il,l:li

J,il,,1,'

,rl ii....'.ti:t o
lj ;i:

:a
il-r f,' I

l
:l

ul'

iilii

i

I

:

'.;
',,'-:

;

):'

ffil$l'iryl1p+ri,,ry" ??1,er,ffi1ffiffi

ii1k#ffi
"i h. rffiffiIfffiffifti

'l'ffitW

..)"'tj\,

,,..)

:_)

-;\_
a:.)

J

.:+-i
:J -e

:J"

D--

!:) "

?\
i:/. \.:\
,\,
-t,/

:)

;)-

-::/

1;\
,:)



$chedule for Appointrne nt of Agent by Corporation I Nonprofit
Organization or Limited Liability Company

$ubnrit to munii:tpal cii: tk

rlr:r

;l

:1i i r,i:l
I

j d. il,l ,}

:at I

I

,l

ili.,r

(Fnt\( / flilr lqclil'.. Nrfie)

. ii :r i, r.i;iti:, lr,r: iir,r1::'i Jisbility cornpany and ,,', ,,
l

| ;:. I l1i ;r1

r,., l{ ffie*h5

frelcby acrept lhis appornlriient :'rs aqeril fr'rr th'l

.ci.:
/- 6-P lri

Ji r i-':*,:1i1ii.;{1-



$chedule for Appointment of Agent by Corporation I Nonprofit
Organization or Limited Liability Company

Submit to municipal clerk.

All corporations/organizalions or linrited liability oompanies applying lor a license to sell ferrnenled malt beverages end/or inloxicating liquol

must appoint an agent. The tollowing questions musl be answored by the agent fhe appointnrenl must be signed by an oflicer of lhe

corporation/organizalion or one member/nranager of a limited liabilily company and the recommendnlion rnade lry the proper local offrcrnl

LJ rown

To tho governing hocly of: [-J Vittage

ffi ci,v

'i

a corporation/organizatiorr or lirrriter: hahility company rnakrng application fi:r an alcohol bs'.,erage license for a prerrtises known as

* fu -befrfr11L--- countvor .llUgmlh

i ltdtrt lJlrttert,l.-lk:' hgaYLri (iJL 4-.)t:t'l

J t D E ai /\L,'ot nl,.\ | ;,!t: t t I'

to alcohol beverages conducted therein. ls applicant agent preserltly aoting in tltat capacity or [equesttng approva] for any cotpr:ralior/
organization/limited tiabilitv company having or applyr,lg lor a beet and/or lquor Ii<:ense ior any other locatiorl irr VVtgcortstn?

I j yes [X No ll so, indtcat€ the corporate nsnri:(s)/linritecJ liability corrtLratry(ies) arrd rnunicrpality{iers)

For f ril u- E-cJdircJ:fttrd, L-Lc-

2 AV, 
{Naole ol C.qpbr.r,olt ; ()tgaok alioo / l-tfril|?d l.iiihilitt Lonaanyl

--rs,u,,iirro 
ot r:.yncat ) uemiei;,ll;;.rg,,"1 

*-.. * -

Any person who knowrngly provides materially false infornrahon in an application for a license may be required to forfeit not nlore than

$1 000,

ACCEPTANCE BY AGENI

r [J ,Ltx]tl(. Ad t-4ru:
(Fin / rypt 4!,.-"/rl s ,Va0rfJ

I

.,::, r',,ii, rj ,1, , i r ,il |'ir :rr , li llil. rr r. i ,11 ,'

,:11 i :ltrr . rit il:1. I .r. :1, r. 1. ,: ' ,i.,,' I r,l '

ffur{;t ld ltatt ::i4 Q,i,!9;1

rocate.ri- tttt tt) [cLeancb-l'tr'l ,

appoints ftl,UtelLe AJ kiir:

l

APPROVAL OF AGENT BY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY

t/
tne character, record anr, reputatioil irI(.r

A;,proved ,:,r 8'(f-'q iry
lD;tl.:)



'1.'h 
i s (' c rt i l i t-ra tr"' rt l' ('ut ttp l i't i t:tt u l'

eTIPS Of{ Premise 3.0 - Wisconsin
For corrrscr"r,rtrk cotlprletecl on Itllv I7, 2019

pr*r iclcrl h5' Ilr:nhlt (,'ntntttttttir,:itliults, lttc
is hcrclrl srilirtr'd tti:

h{ichtllc Adkins

,-;
t ,Nffil e*;S+, , ,f



Submit to municipal clerk

Full Nanre file as6 print) l?,rs, trame) (frtcJdie natne)

The above named individual provides the following information as a person who is fcfieck one;

[-"-l Applying for an alcohol lreverage license as an individual.

fj A member of a partnership which is nraking application for an alcohoi bevnrege license

which is making application for an alcohol beverage license.

The above named individual provides the following information to the licensing authority:

2. Have you ever been convicted of any offenses (other than traffic unrelated to irlcohol beverages) for
violation of any federal laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of any other states or ordinances of any county
or municipality? i "lves 

{*olf yes, give law or'ordinance violated, trial court, trial date and penalty ;mposed, and/or cJate. clescription and
status of charges pending. (tf more toom is needed, cantinue on reversa sid6 of this form)

Are charges for any ofrbnses presently pending egeinsl you (other than traftio unrelatecl to alcohol beverages)
for violation of any federal laws, ar-ry Wisconsin laws. any laws of cther states or orCinances of any county or
municipatity? ;] Ves X *o
lfyes, describe status of charges pending.
Do you holtl, are you making application tor oi are-yoi an oltrcer, director oiffiGi a 

"orpoiaiionlno"pr"f[ 
-

organization or memberlmanagerlagent of a limited liability company holding or applying for any other atoohol
beverage license or perrnil?

lf yes, identify.

Auxiliary Questionnaire
Alcohol Beverage License Application

m

.lr.

'*-)

,3.

'*) 4

il ves Xl*u

,5.
iNofre Lacaliofr sng TyDs ol L$ensarpamt)

Do you hold and/or are you an officer, director, stockholder, agent or employe of any person or corporation or
member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for a wholesale beer pennit,
brewery/winery permit or wholesale liquor, manufacturer or rectifier permit in the State of lv1/isconsin? - . . . ,

lf yes, identify.

{Name a wiioieiaie {icensee o; e.irnilrje;i 
.

"* ); 6. Named individual rnust list in chrcln<;logical crrJer last two employers.
(Addtcss 8y Cily and Couilty)

READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Under penalty provided hy law. the undersigned states thal each 0f the above quesrions lras
been truthfully answered tro the best cf the know{edge of the signer. The signer agrees that he/she is the person named in the f<lregcrng
application; tnat the applicant has read and made a complete answer to each qLiestion, and that the answers in each instance are true ancj
correct. The undersigned further understands that any license issued contrary to Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes shall be void, and
under penalty of state iaw, the applicant may be prosecuied for submitiing false statements and afiidavits in connect;on with this appla$a-
tion. Any cerson who knowingly provides materially false information on thrs

* *)--

Ar,103 lR 7"18)

fves d*"

riot mcro than $1,0ti0

Ws@nsin Depadro6r-.1 ol R6w'nLre

(titil t jaftB)



the ahove n&fiot.t it\div\ltral provrrles the followin(J informatrfir a$ ;i pefsorr whr'j iii lcAeck o/)oi

I I Applying lor an alcohol hevera$e license a$ an iudividu$l

'r,'l

A uxil inry Questionnfi irs
Aleahol Bevernge Lleense Application

ildD ts'

-'*1
,*rt

i

Abe-r;i;.?lrd_- -r,/#- - i lgH stfl4ffqfr
fVl'n4'S^ ia:rm i'i:r,

t.

1,



Ordinance 19-14   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

An ordinance amending sections 74-187(2)(b), Operation on streets restricted, and 74-188(b), 
Compliance with traffic laws; license required, of Article V, Neighborhood Electric Vehicles, of 
Chapter 74, Traffic and Vehicles, of the City of Lake Geneva Municipal Code; relating to licensing 
and areas of operation 

 
Committee 

 
N/A 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19-14 First Reading :   
Second Reading : 

September 9, 2019 
September 23, 2019 

 
The City of Lake Geneva Common Council does ordain as follows: 
 
 
As used in this article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated: 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ELECTRIC VEHICLE (NEV)Neighborhood electric vehicle as defined in § 
340.01(36r27h) of the Wisconsin Statutes and currently registered and licensed as such by the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation. 
 
Sec. 74-187 Operation on streets restricted.  
 Individuals may operate an NEV on or across the following streets: 
 
(1) Any street within the jurisdictional limits of the City of Lake Geneva having a posted speed limit of 35 
miles per hour or less that is not a part of the State Trunk Highway Network. 
 
(2) Any street within the jurisdictional limits of the City of Lake Geneva having a posted speed limit of 35 
miles per hour or less that is a part of the State Trunk Highway Network: 
 

a. On State Highway 50, from Snake Road to Curtis Street. 
 
b. On State Highway 120, from Townline Road to Edwards Boulevard with the ability to cross State 

Highway 50 at that intersection. 
b. Across numbered state highways where the state highway as a speed limit of 35 miles per hour or 

less and the intersection has traffic control signals. 
 
 
Sec. 74-188 Compliance with traffic laws; license required.  
  
(a) The operation of NEVs shall comply with all traffic statutes and ordinances applicable to vehicles 
traveling upon streets and highways in the City of Lake Geneva. 
 



Ordinance 19-14   Page 2 of 2 
 

(b) Any person operating an NEV within the jurisdictional limits of City of Lake Geneva shall hold a valid 
Wisconsin regular or probationary driver's license and follow all motor vehicle laws.. 
 
(c) Each person operating a neighborhood electric vehicle on a public street in the City of Lake Geneva shall 
be granted all of the rights and be subject to all of the duties applicable to a driver of any motor vehicle in the 
State of Wisconsin, including maintaining insurance as required by state law, except as to the special 
regulations in this section and except as to those provisions which by their nature do not apply to the 
operation of a neighborhood electric vehicle 
 
This ordinance shall take effect upon passage by a majority vote of the members-elect of the Common 
Council and publication/posting as required by law. 
 
Approved by the City of Lake Geneva Common Council on this 23rd day of September, 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
  
  Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 

 
 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 
 
 
To:   Common Council 
 
From: John Peters, Fire Chief 
 
Date: September 5, 2019 
 
Re: Ambulance Donation 
 
 

The Fire Department requests approval to donate our decommissioned 1997 ambulance to the City of 
Delavan Fire Department.  

The value of this vehicle is minimal; we based our estimate on current scrap value, which is $200/ton or 
$1,300.00.  

This donation is compliant with our Disposal of Obsolete Equipment departmental policy and consistent 
with our long term strategic plans to support our neighboring departments.  

This donation has been approved by the Police and Fire Commission and Finance, License, & Regulation 
Committee. 
 

 

City of 

LAKE GENEVA 
Wisconsin 



 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution authorizing the carryover of 2018 Equipment Replacement Funds to the 2019 Equipment 
Replacement Fund Budget and authorizing additional 2019 purchases from the Equipment Replacement Fund. 

 
Committee: 

 
Finance considered on September 3, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19-R63 Date: September 9, 2019 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Lake Geneva Common Council approved the 2018 and 2019 Equipment Replacement 
Budgets for the City of Lake Geneva for equipment purchases to occur during 2018 and 2019, and 
 
WHEREAS, there were funds remaining in the Emergency Management Fund budget in 2018 for the 
purpose of replacing sirens, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Common Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary, desirable and in the best 
interest of the City of Lake Geneva to amend the 2019 approved budget and carryover the following funds 
and authorize additional purchases from the 2019 budget as follows: 
 
 Acct# 50-29-00-58000  Emergency Mgmt. Equipment Purchases $ 7,056 
  
WHEREAS, on September 3, 2019, the City of Lake Geneva, Finance, Licensing and Regulation Committee 
reviewed the proposed budget amendment and found it is in the best interest of the City and recommends that 
the City of Lake Geneva Common Council approve the carryover of 7,056 to the 2019 budget. 
 
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva be hereby 
directed and authorized to carryover 2018 funds and approve additional purchases and amend the 2019 
budget as outlined above.  
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 9th day of September, 2019. 
 
 
Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       

 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 

 
 
 

 

Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                    Date 



 

RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

Resolution adopting a budget amendment authorizing the allocation of the Department of Public Works health 
insurance premiums to specific departments. 

 
Committee: 

 
Finance considered on September 3, 2019 

Fiscal Impact: N/A 

File Number: 19-R64 Date: September 9, 2019 

 
Whereas, the Lake Geneva Common Council approved the 2019 operating budget for the General fund, and 
 
Whereas, the Streets Department of the Public Works health insurance premiums account was originally allocated a 
budget of $277,005, and 
 
Whereas, the Finance, Licensing and Regulation Committee approved the request for allocating the monthly insurance 
health care costs to specified departments within the Department of Public Works, and 
 
Now Therefore be it Resolved that the Lake Geneva Common Council adopt a budget amendment allowing for the 
transfer in the 2019 Operating Budget as follows: 
 
 Increase Acct #11-32-12-51345, Snow & Ice Health Insurance by $27,543 
 Increase Acct #11-32-13-51345, Tree & Brush Health Insurance by $24,060 
 Increase Acct #11-32-14-51345, Composting Health Insurance by $11,605 
 Increase Acct #11-32-15-51345, Storm Sewer Health Insurance by $2,013 
 Increase Acct #34-10-51345, Traffic Control Health Insurance by $503 
 Increase Acct #11-52-00-51345, Parks Health Insurance by $20,385 
 Increase Acct #11-52-01-51345, Vets Park Health Insurance by $14,330 
 Increase Acct #40-54-10-51345, Beach Maintenance Health Insurance by $1,486 
 Increase Acct #40-55-10-51345, Riviera Maintenance Health Insurance by $20,919 
 Decrease Acct #11-10-20-51335, Health Insurance Premiums by $32,778 
 Decrease Acct #11-32-10-51345, Streets Health Insurance by $90,066 
 Decrease Acct #11-00-00-49300, Transfer from Lakefront by $22,405 
 Decrease Acct #40-55-20-59300, Transfer to General Fund by $22,405  
 
Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 9th day of September, 2019. 
 
 

Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote       
 
 

Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 
 
  
Thomas Hartz, Mayor Date 
 
Attest: 
 

  _______________________________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk                                           Date 



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
Distribution of Health Insurance - DPW Department
Budget Amendment

Account Account Original Budget
Number Title Budget Allocated Actual

11-10-20-51335 Health Insurance Premiums* 32,778            
11-32-10-51345 Streets-Health Insurance 277,005          186,939        103,453          
11-32-12-51345 Snow & Ice-Health Insurance -                   27,543          15,242            
11-32-13-51345 Tree & Brush-Health Insurance -                   24,060          13,315            
11-32-14-51345 Composting-Health Insurance -                   11,605          6,423               
11-32-15-51345 Storm Sewer-Health Insurance -                   2,013            1,114               
11-34-10-51345 Traffic Control-Health Insurance -                   503                278                  
11-52-00-51345 Parks-Health Insurance -                   20,385          11,281            
11-52-01-51345 Vets Park-Health Insurance -                   14,330          7,930               

40-54-10-51345 Beach Maint-Health Insurance -                   1,486            822                  
40-55-10-51345 Riv Maint-Health Insurance -                   20,919          11,576            

309,783          309,783        171,435          

*add (1) family to streets for additional employee
(Omar transferred from Cemetery to Streets)  (Ryan Boyle is new employee)

Budget Amendment DR CR
11-10-20-51335 Health Insurance Premiums 32,778          
11-32-10-51345 Streets-Health Insurance 90,066          
11-32-12-51345 Snow & Ice-Health Insurance 27,543            
11-32-13-51345 Tree & Brush-Health Insurance 24,060            
11-32-14-51345 Composting-Health Insurance 11,605            
11-32-15-51345 Storm Sewer-Health Insurance 2,013               
11-34-10-51345 Traffic Control-Health Insurance 503                  
11-52-00-51345 Parks-Health Insurance 20,385            
11-52-01-51345 Vets Park-Health Insurance 14,330            
11-00-00-49300 Transfer from Lakefront 22,405            

40-54-10-51345 Beach Maint-Health Insurance 1,486               
40-55-10-51345 Riv Maint-Health Insurance 20,919            
40-55-20-59300 Transfer to General Fund 22,405          

145,249          145,249        



Actual
Percentage

60.35%
8.89%
7.77%
3.75%
0.65%
0.16%
6.58%
4.63%

0.48%
6.75%

100%



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
Distribution of Health Insurance - DPW Department
Budget Amendment

Budget Amendment DR CR
11-10-20-51335 Health Insurance Premiums 32,778      
11-32-10-51345 Streets-Health Insurance 90,066      
11-32-12-51345 Snow & Ice-Health Insurance 27,543      
11-32-13-51345 Tree & Brush-Health Insurance 24,060      
11-32-14-51345 Composting-Health Insurance 11,605      
11-32-15-51345 Storm Sewer-Health Insurance 2,013        
11-34-10-51345 Traffic Control-Health Insurance 503            
11-52-00-51345 Parks-Health Insurance 20,385      
11-52-01-51345 Vets Park-Health Insurance 14,330      
11-00-00-49300 Transfer from Lakefront 22,405      

40-54-10-51345 Beach Maint-Health Insurance 1,486        
40-55-10-51345 Riv Maint-Health Insurance 20,919      
40-55-20-59300 Transfer to General Fund 22,405      

145,249    145,249    



City of Lake Geneva Policy Regarding Issuance of Regular and Reserve 
Intoxicating Liquor Licenses 

Purpose 
The City of Lake Geneva has created this policy to establish criteria and set guidelines to aid the Finance, Licensing, 
and Regulation Committee (FLR) and the Common Council with the selection and issuance of “Class B” Intoxicating 
Liquor License and a Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor Licenses. These licenses (typically referred to as “bar/tavern 
licenses”) give a business the ability to serve intoxicating liquor, fermented malt beverages, and wine for on-premises 
consumption. 
 
Background 
The City of Lake Geneva is required by the State of Wisconsin to establish a quota of “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor 
Licenses.  The quota is based on one license per 500 city residents.  The City may increase its quota with a population 
increase of 500 people, per the Wisconsin Department of Administration’s annual population estimate. 
 
Because the City of Lake Geneva attracts many visitors, the demand for “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor Licenses is high. 
Thus it is imperative that the City set guidelines and criteria to make the selection of a license applicant objective, fair, 
and transparent. 
 
Fees 
The fees for the “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor Licenses are as follows: 
-Regular “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License: $600 
-Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License & Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License: $600 
-Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License One-Time Filing Fee: $10,000 
-Publication fee (required of all license applicants) $25 
No fees shall be required until the reviewing committees have made and approved an applicant to receive the 
license. Once an applicant is chosen and approved by the reviewing committee, the applicant will need to pay all 
license fees before it can be issued by the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
Criteria 
Applicants filing for a Regular or Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License will be evaluated based on criteria as 
outlined below. Each criteria option will have a points associated with it. The total score of all points scored must 
equal or exceed 32 points to qualify the applicant for a license.  The FLR will confirm that the application score 
equaled or exceeded 32 points and award the applicant a Regular or Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
provided all other obligations are met.  If the FLR determines that the score is less than 32 points, then it will deny the 
application.  If there are two or more applications, the application with the highest score equal to or higher than 32 
points shall be awarded the license.  In the event that two applicants tie in the evaluation process, it will be the sole 
discretion of the committee to determine which applicant shall receive the license.  
*Please Note: This policy shall only apply to the licenses with a state imposed quota: “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor 
Licenses and Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor Licenses with the City. All other liquor licenses issued by the City do 
not have a quota.* 
 



Restaurants 
Is the applicant requesting a license for a full restaurant where food sales and processing is the main revenue source 
(i.e. food sales makes up at least 50% of the gross receipts for the business)? 
______ Yes (5 points)                OR            ______ No (2 points)  
 
If the applicant is planning to have food available to patrons, will the menu contain at least 20% of its items 
grown/raised by local farmers/growers located within 100 miles of Lake Geneva? 
 
______ Yes (4 points)                OR            ______ No (0 points) 
 
If yes, please list the farmers/growers and products that will be utilized:  
 
_______________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

With respect to intoxicating liquor, wine and fermented malt beverages, does the applicant plan to offer small-batch 
and craft items for at least 50% of its intoxicating liquor menu with these items purchased from local 
breweries/wineries/distilleries located within 100 miles of Lake Geneva? 
 
______ Yes (4 points)                OR            ______ No (0 points) 
 
If yes, please list the breweries/wineries/distilleries and products that will be utilized: __________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Building 
Is the applicant requesting a license for a new or existing building?  
 
______ New (2 points)                OR            ______Existing (4 points) 
 
Will the applicant make any improvements to the new or existing property? If so, how much what is the projected 
amount that will be spent on renovations/updates?  
 
$5,000 to $25,000    ________ (1 point) 
$25,001- $75,000     ________ (2 points) 
$75,001- $150,000  ________ (3 points) 
$150,001+                 ________ (4 points) 
 
 
 
 
 



What is the size of the building where the license will be used?  
 
1,000 sq to 2,500 square feet   ________ (4 points) 
2,501 sq to 5,000 square feet   ________ (3 points) 
5,001 sq to 10,000 square feet    ________ (2 points) 
10,000+ square feet    ________ (1 point) 
 
What will be the patron seating capacity of the business?  
 
Less than 50 seating capacity  ________ (4 points) 
51-100 seating capacity  ________ (3 points) 
101-200 seating capacity  ________ (2 points) 
201-300 seating capacity  ________ (1 point) 
300+ is 0 points because it automatically qualifies for a Class B Combo License 
 
What is the proximity of other licensed establishments to the applicant’s? (Entrance to Entrance) Select most accurate 
option. 
 
>30 feet  ________ (2 points) 
<30 feet  ________ (1 point) 
 
 
Will your business provide parking for your patrons, or will patrons need to utilize City metered parking?  
 
______ Own Parking (2 points)                OR            ______ City Owned parking (1 point)  
 
Demographics 
Will the applicant either be purchasing or currently own this property?  
 
______ Yes (3 points)                OR            ______ No (1 point)  
 
How many people will the applicant employ? 
 
5-10 employees  _________ (2 points) 
11-30 employees  _________ (3 points) 
31-40 employees  _________ (4 points) 
40+ employees     _________ (6 points) 
 
Where does the owner of the business live? 
 
City of Lake Geneva ________ (5 points) or Outside the City of Lake Geneva but in Walworth County ________ (3 points) 
Or in the State of Wisconsin ______ (1 point) 



Is the business an independent/original concept or a copy/franchise? 
 
______ Independent/Original concept (5 points)       OR      ______ Copy/Franchise (2 points) 

 
 
Total 
 
 Total number of points applicant scored _________________ 
 
Scoring Guidelines 
 
The applicant must score 32 or more points to qualify for a Regular or Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License. 
 
 
 
 
Conclusion/Determination 
 
In the event of a tied application score between multiple applicants, as noted earlier, it will be the committee’s 
discretion to review and discuss the various applications and determine which applicant will be granted the license, 
while closely following the guidelines as aforementioned. All licenses are subject to the approval of the Common 
Council, and no license will be issued to any applicant with outstanding city claims (i.e. personal property tax, utilities, 
license fees, etc) 
 
Additionally the City of Lake Geneva Police Department shall complete a background check of the applicant.  This 
background check will be included as part of the reviewing committee’s determination. 
 
 

 

 

  

 































 
 

120 East Lakeside Street • Madison, Wisconsin 53715  • 608.255.3988 • 608.255.0814 Fax  

247 Freshwater Way, Suite 530 • Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53204 • 414.988.8631 

www.vandewalle.com 

 

Shaping places, shaping change 

To: Mayor Hartz 

From: Brian Munson and Jackie Mich 

Date: Wednesday, August 28, 2019 

Re: Hillmoor Property Concept Plan 

Evaluating the future use of the Hillmoor Property represents a wide range of opportunities for 
the City of Lake Geneva. Vandewalle & Associates proposes the following tasks to help the City 
frame development options for the site to help inform future discussions on long term use of the 
site: 

Work Element 1: Site Visit & Site Analysis 

1.1) Site Visit/Kickoff Meeting: Vandewalle & Associates staff will undertake a one day site 
visit to investigate the on-site and surrounding conditions of the Hillmoor Property to 
develop a more thorough understanding of the site conditions and gather additional 
background information.  This information will be used to build a better understanding of 
the historic and on-going discussions of development options for the site. 

The design team will also meet with from City Staff and the City’s Project Management 
Team (if using) during this trip to discuss project goals. 

1.2) Preliminary Base Map Creation: Vandewalle & Associates will work with the City to 
develop base information regarding the site and adjoining properties for use in the 
creation of the concept plans. 

1.3) Site Analysis: Vandewalle & Associates will undertake an initial site analysis of the target 
property using publicly available information. Items investigated may include, but are not 
limited to, the following items: 

1.) Existing Conditions (topography, soils, wetlands, floodplains, water features, 
streams, lakes, woodlands, existing improvements) 

2.) Adjoining Properties (uses, ownership patterns) 
3.) Municipal regulations (adopted plans, zoning) 

 
This work will be used to inform the concept plan designs, but no formal presentation or 
summary will be made of the findings.  

 
Estimated Timing: Week 1-3 

  

http://www.vandewalle.com/


08/28/19   Page 2 of 3 

Work Element 2: Concept Plan Development 

2.1)  Concept Plan Alternatives: Vandewalle & Associates will create three concept plan 
alternatives for the development of the target parcel, based upon program goals for 
the project and information gained during the site analysis phase. These will include 
land uses area bubbles, circulation patterns, and important bike/pedestrian 
connections. Text boxes and photos may be used to further describe potential future 
uses. Accompanying narrative description will address: 

1.) Design principles and overall guidelines for the site 
2.) Natural resource preservation areas 
3.) Definitions and descriptions of the recommended future land use categories 

included in the concept plans, including development character and scale 
4.) Photo examples where applicable 
5.) Types of development that are not desirable (e.g., big box development) 

2.2)  Working Session with Council and Plan Commission: Vandewalle & Associates will 
lead a working session at a joint meeting of the Common Council and Plan Commission 
to present the concept plan alternatives and determine the desired design direction for the 
one preferred concept plan to be shared at the public open house.   

This is anticipated to be a special meeting in order to complete this scope of work 
within the City’s desired timeline. 

 
2.3) Concept Plan Refinement (Draft 2): Vandewalle & Associates will refine one 

concept plan alternative in response to input provided at the working session with 
Council and Plan Commission to take to public open house.  

 
2.4) Public Open House: Vandewalle & Associates will organize a public open house 

for the community to review the draft concept plan and provide input. Vandewalle & 
Associates will provide a meeting flyer. The City will be responsible for distribution 
of the flyer and additional publicity. 

 
2.5) Final Concept Plan (Draft 3): Vandewalle & Associates will prepare one final 

concept plan that reflects comments received. Vandewalle & Associates will 
incorporate the final concept plan into the Draft Comprehensive Plan by updating 
the Future Land Use Map as appropriate and providing a narrative description of the 
City’s goals and objectives for the site.   

 
 Final Concept Plan to be completed in early November to allow for 30-day public 

review period prior to the December 9 Public Hearing. Vandewalle & Associates will 
provide all deliverables in digital format (PDF). 
 

Estimated Timing: Week 4-7 

Total Proposed Budget:  $29,500 

Timeline:  2 Months  

Work done beyond the scope of services will be incurred on a time and materials basis. 



08/28/19   Page 3 of 3 

 

Preliminary Project Schedule 

 

Timing
Task 1.1 Site Visit/Kickoff Meeting Sept. 18-20
Task 1.2 Preliminary Base Map Creation Sept. 1-18
Task 1.3 Site Analysis Sept. 1-18

Task 2.1 Concept Plan Alternatives (Draft 1 - for Council & PC Review) Sept. 18-Oct.4
Task 2.2 Working Session with Council and Plan Commission Oct. 7-11
Task 2.3 Concept Plan Refinement (Draft 2 - for Public Review) Oct. 14-18
Task 2.4 Public Open House to Review Concept Oct. 21-25
Task 2.5 Final Concept Plan (Draft 3 - for Public Hearing) Oct. 31 

Work Element 2:  Concept Plan

Work Element 1: Site Visit & Site Analysis


	0-September 9, 2019 Council Agenda
	city of lake geneva regular common council
	Monday, September 9, 2019 6:00 p.m.

	04a-Proclamation National Assisted Living Week- 2019
	08-August 26, 2019 Council Minutes
	Ucity of lake geneva regular common council Minutes
	UMonday, August 26, 2019 6:00 p.m.

	09a-Original Operator License FLR
	09ba-FEE WAIVER - VLG Riviera Winterfest (2)
	09bb-VLG Winterfest Fee Comparision_2016-2018 (2)
	Sheet1

	09bc-VLG Winterfest Banners
	09c-07 05 2019 Worship in the Park Tier 1
	09d-Fee Waiver 2020 Book Sale Banner Application
	09ea- WalMart Premises Extension
	09eb-Walmart #910 (Lake Geneva) - Floor Plan-Site Map
	09ec-Walmart Online Grocery Pickup Procedure Guide (PDF version)
	09f- Fairfield Inn Liquor License Application
	10-Ordinance 19-14- Neighborhood Electric Vehicles
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	11A-Disposal of old Ambulance Proposal to Comm Council
	11b-Resolution 19-R63   Equipment Replacement Fund Carryover Emerg Mgnt
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	11ca-Resolution 19-R64 Health Insurance Allocation
	Council Action: Adopted Failed          Vote

	11cb-DPW Health Insurance Allocation
	Analysis
	Amendment

	11d-City of Lake Geneva Policy Regarding Issuance of Regular and Reserve Intoxicating Liquor Licenses v2
	11fa-Prepaid Bills
	11fb-Regular Bills
	11g-Lake Geneva - Hillmoor Property Scope - 8.28.19 final



